Ministry of Higher Education and Scientific Research University of Misan College of Education Department of English



Digital Tools English Language Teaching

A Research

Submitted to the Council of the Department of English College of Education, University of Misan in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of B.A. in English

Written by

Marwa Baqer Jasem Supervised by

Asst Inst: Zaitonah Hussein Hato

2025 A.D. 1446H.

بسم الله الرحمن الرحيم

(يَرْفَعِ اللَّهُ الَّذِينَ آمَنُوا مِنكُمْ وَالَّذِينَ أُوتُوا الْعِلْمَ دَرَجَاتٍ)

صدق الله العلي العظيم

سورة المجادلة: (آية 11)

Dedication

I dedicate my research to my beautiful family who always supported me and stood by me, and to my friends and everyone who participated with me in my graduation journey.

Acknowledgements

I would like to thank everyone who helped and guided me during my academic journey, and I thank my family who helped me, and also thank my supervisor (Asst Inst: Zaitonah Hussein Hato) for his wonderful help in my research, and finally, but not least, I thank myself for reaching this beautiful moment in my life, which is completing my graduate research.

Abstract

Digital tools have become increasingly prevalent in English language teaching, providing educators with a wide range of resources to enhance their instructional practices. Another popular digital tool in English language teaching is language learning apps like Duolingo and Babbel, which offer interactive lessons, exercises, and quizzes to help students practice grammar, vocabulary, and pronunciation. These apps provide a convenient way for learners to study English on-the-go and at their own pace.

Digital storytelling tools like Storybird and Book Creator are also utilized in English language teaching to promote creativity and writing skills.

Table of Contents

N0.	Contents	Page
	Dedication	Ι
	Acknowledgements	II
	Abstract	III
	Table of Contents	IV
	Chapter One	1
1.1	Introduction	1
1.2	The problem	2
1.3	The Aim of study	2
1.4	Definition of Digital Tools	3
1.5	Attributes of Effective Digital Tools in Language Education	4
1.6	Advantages of Digital Tools in Teaching English	5
1.7	Strategies for Implementing Digital Tools	6
	Chapter Two	8
2.1	Categories of Digital Tools	8
2.2	Function in Course Management and Student Monitoring	9
2.3	Interactive Apps and Software	11
2.4	Multimedia Resources	12
2.5	Stages of Digital Tool Integration	14
	Conclusion	17
	References	18

Chapter One

1.1 Introduction

Digital tools have significantly transformed the landscape of language education, particularly in teaching and learning English. With the rapid advancements in technology, educators are now equipped with a wide variety of digital tools that can enhance the overall language learning experience. These tools include interactive applications, online learning platforms, language learning software, and multimedia resources, which collectively contribute to creating a more engaging and effective language learning environment.

One of the primary benefits of utilizing digital tools in English language teaching is the increased engagement they foster among students. Traditional teaching methods often struggle to capture students' attention, resulting in a lack of motivation to learn. Digital tools, such as gamified learning applications, offer an interactive platform where students can practice their language skills in a fun and stimulating way. For example, platforms like Duolingo and Quizlet provide students with game-like exercises that make mastering vocabulary and grammar enjoyable. Such engagement is crucial in a time when students are accustomed to instant gratification and interactive experiences in their daily lives.

The incorporation of digital tools in English language teaching presents numerous benefits, including increased student engagement, adaptability to diverse learning styles, and broader access to quality resources. However, addressing the challenges associated with technology use is essential for maximizing these benefits. By acknowledging both the opportunities and obstacles, educators can develop effective strategies for integrating digital tools into their teaching practices. This approach not

only enhances language learning but also prepares students for a digital world, ultimately improving their overall educational experience.

1.2 The problems

Digital tools can address the problem of limited access to quality language resources, especially in remote or underprivileged areas. The internet offers vast amounts of information and learning materials that can be accessed from anywhere, breaking down geographical barriers that often hinder educational opportunities. Online platforms such as British Council and BBC Learning English provide high-quality resources, including free courses, exercises, and articles that students can utilize from home. This availability of resources levels the playing field for learners in different locations, giving everyone an opportunity to improve their language skills.

Despite these benefits, there are challenges to consider when integrating digital tools into English languiage teaching. The reliance on technology may lead to issues such as the digital divide, where not all students have equal access to devices or internet connectivity. Additionally, educators may face a steep learning curve as they adapt to new technologies. Training and professional development in digital education practices are essential for teachers to effectively implement these tools in their lessons.

1.3 The Aim of study

Digital tools cater to the diverse learning styles of students, thus promoting inclusivity in language education. Each learner has unique preferences and strengths; some may excel in visual learning, while others may prefer auditory learning approaches. Digital tools can incorporate multimedia resources such as videos, podcasts, and interactive quizzes, which allow learners to engage with content in a way that aligns with their

learning style. For instance, using video resources like YouTube can help visual learners better understand pronunciation and intonation in English. This adaptability ensures that all students have the opportunity to thrive in a language learning environment.

1.4 Definition of Digital Tools

Digital tools refer to software applications, platforms, and resources that utilize digital technology to facilitate various tasks and processes. In the context of education, digital tools encompass a wide range of technologies, including learning management systems (LMS), educational apps, online collaboration platforms, and multimedia resources. These tools are designed to enhance the learning experience by providing interactive, engaging, and personalized educational opportunities. In language education, digital tools can include language learning apps, online dictionaries, grammar checkers, and virtual classrooms, all of which aim to support language acquisition and proficiency(Hockly, 2013:43).

Digital tools refer to software applications, platforms, and resources that employ digital technology to facilitate various tasks and processes. In recent years, especially with the advent of the Fourth Industrial Revolution, the importance of digital tools has grown dramatically in various sectors, particularly in education. Educators and students alike have turned to these technologies to enhance learning experiences and improve efficiency in educational processes. In the educational context, digital tools encompass a wide array of technologies. Learning Management Systems (LMS), for instance, have gained significant traction. Platforms like Moodle and Canvas offer functionalities that allow teachers to deliver course materials, track student progress, and manage assessments all in one place. This integration streamlines the learning process, making it easier for both educators and students to stay organized and engaged(Allen, 2021:89).

1.5 Attributes of Effective Digital Tools in Language Education

Effective digital tools in language education possess several key attributes that enhance their utility and impact. Firstly, interactivity is crucial; tools that allow learners to engage actively with content—through quizzes, games, or simulations—tend to be more effective in promoting language skills (Hockly, 2013:87). Secondly, accessibilit is essential; tools should be easy to use and available across various devices, ensuring that all learners can benefit regardless of their technological proficiency (Baker, 2018:54).

Another important attribute is adaptability; effective digital tools should cater to diverse learning styles and levels, allowing for personalized learning experiences (Godwin-Jones, 2018:65). Furthermore, Collaboration feature are vital, as they enable learners to work together, share resources, and practice language skills in a social context (Kessler, 2018:318).

Lastly, feedback mechanisms are crucial; tools that provide immediate feedback help learners identify areas for improvement and reinforce their understanding of language concepts (Hattie & Timperley, 2007:98).

One vital attribute of effective digital tools is interactivity. Tools that engage students actively facilitate learning by encouraging participation rather than passive observation. For instance, applications like Duolingo use gamified elements, allowing learners to earn points and unlock achievements as they progress. This interactive experience motivates learners to engage consistently, making them more likely to retain new vocabulary and grammar rules(Duolingo,2023:67).

1.6 Advantages of Digital Tools in Teaching English

The integration of digital tools in teaching English offers numerous advantages. One significant benefit is enhanced engagement; digital tools often incorporate multimedia elements such as videos, animations, and interactive exercises that capture learners' attention and motivate them to participate actively in their learning. This increased engagement can lead to improved retention of language concepts and vocabulary. Additionally, digital tools facilitate flexibility and convenienc in language learning. Learners can access resources anytime and anywhere, allowing them to study at their own pace and fit language learning into their busy schedules . This flexibility is particularly beneficial for adult learners who may have work or family commitments. Moreover, digital tools can provide rich, authentic language exposure. Many tools offer access to real-world materials, such as news articles, podcasts, and videos, which help learners develop their listening and reading skills in context (Hockly, 2013:71).

Digital tools in teaching English offer numerous advantages that enhance both teaching and learning experiences. One significant benefit is the ability to provide interactive learning environments. Tools such as multimedia presentations, educational games, and online quizzes engage students more effectively than traditional methods, fostering greater motivation and participation(Wright,2016:22).

Digital tools facilitate personalized learning. Platforms such as language learning apps allow students to progress at their own pace, catering to individual strengths and weaknesses. This tailored approach not only supports diverse learning styles but also enables educators to monitor and adjust instruction based on student performance (Godwin-Jones, 2018:34).

Additionally, digital tools enhance accessibility. Resources such as e-books and online journals are readily available, allowing students from various backgrounds to access quality materials. This democratization of information is essential in promoting equity in education and ensuring that all learners have the opportunity to improve their English language skills (Bates, 2019: 59).

The integration of digital tools in English teaching prepares students for the demands of a modern, digital world. Proficiency in digital literacy is becoming increasingly important, and equipping students with these skills not only enriches their language learning but also enhances their employability in a technology-driven job market (Rheingold, 2012: 104).

1.7 Strategies for Implementing Digital Tools

To effectively implement digital tools in language education, educators should consider several strategies. First, professional development is essential; teachers need training to become proficient in using digital tools and integrating them into their teaching practices (Hattie & Timperley, 2007:65).

Workshops, webinars, and peer collaboration can provide valuable support. Second, educators should start with pilot programs to test the effectiveness of specific digital tools before full-scale implementation. This approach allows for adjustments based on feedback and results (Baker, 2018:89).

Additionally, it is important to align digital tools with learning objectives. Educators should ensure that the tools they choose directly support the language skills they aim to develop, whether it be speaking, listening, reading, or writing. Furthermore, fostering a supportive learning environment is crucial. Encouraging collaboration among students and

creating opportunities for peer feedback can enhance the effectiveness of digital tools(Kessler, 2018:32).

Another strategy is to promote a culture of adaptability. Digital transformation often encounters resistance from employees who may be accustomed to traditional methods. Leaders must communicate the importance of digital tools and how they can enhance productivity and performance. Organizations might hold meetings to discuss the benefits of new technologies or share success stories from other teams. For example, firms that have shifted to digital scheduling systems have reported improved team coordination and time management, showcasing the advantages of embracing change(Smith,2022:35).

Chapter Two

2.1 Categories of Digital Tools

Digital tools have revolutionized the way we work, learn, and communicate. These tools can be broadly categorized into several categories, each serving different purposes and offering unique functionalities that enhance productivity and creativity. Understanding these categories can help individuals and organizations select the right tools for their specific needs. Content Creation Tools form the backbone of digital expression. These include word processors like Microsoft Word and Google Docs, graphic design applications such as Adobe Creative Suite, and video editing software like Final Cut Pro. Content creation tools enable users to produce documents, visuals, and multimedia presentations that can engage an audience effectively. As the digital landscape continually evolves, these tools are becoming more user-friendly, allowing even those with minimal technical backgrounds to high-quality create content(Kirkpatrick, 2019: 45).

Communication Tools are fundamental in facilitating connections among individuals and groups, regardless of their geographical locations. Email platforms like Gmail, instant messaging applications such as Slack, and video conferencing tools like Zoom allow for real-time communication and collaboration. Effective communication tools have become essential for remote teams and organizations, promoting productivity and engagement through seamless conversations (Gonzalez, 2021:102).

Project Management Tools assist teams in organizing, planning, and monitoring projects. Platforms like Trello, Asana, and Monday.com provide features such as task assignments, deadline tracking, and

collaborative calendars. These tools help streamline workflows and ensure that team members are aligned in their objectives and timelines. By using project management tools, organizations can enhance accountability and productivity, making it easier to achieve project goals on time (Gido & Clements, 2018:88).

Data Analysis Tools play a crucial role in helping organizations make informed decisions based on quantitative and qualitative data. Tools like Microsoft Excel, Tableau, and Google Analytics enable users to collect, analyze, and visualize data trends effectively. These insights can inform strategic planning, marketing campaigns, and overall performance assessments. As organizations increasingly rely on data-driven approaches, the importance of data analysis tools continues to grow(Sterne, 2010:56).

Learning Management Systems (LMS) are pivotal in educational settings, providing a platform where instructors can create, manage, and deliver courses. Tools such as Moodle, Canvas, and Blackboard facilitate class interactions, assessments, and tracking of student progress. LMS platforms support blended and online learning environments, making education more accessible and interactive for diverse learners (Watson, 2020:78).

2.2 Function in Course Management and Student Monitoring

Functioning effectively in course management and student monitoring is essential for educators to enhance the learning experience and ensure academic success. These functions are primarily facilitated through various digital platforms that support both instructors and students throughout the educational process. Course management systems (CMS) play a crucial role in organizing academic content and streamlining communication

between students and instructors. These systems, such as Moodle or Blackboard, provide a centralized platform where educators can upload course materials, assignments, and announcements. By utilizing a CMS, educators can efficiently deliver content and monitor student engagement through features like discussion forums and quizzes. This structure not only improves the accessibility of resources but also fosters a more organized learning environment (Katz, 2017:112).

In addition to managing content, CMS also incorporate tools for student assessment and feedback. Instructors can create assignments, tests, and grading rubrics all within the system, allowing for easier tracking of student progress. Real-time feedback mechanisms help students understand their strengths and weaknesses, promoting a growth mindset and encouraging improvement. The ability to analyze grading patterns and participation levels further enables educators to tailor their instruction based on student needs (Gikandi, Morrow, & Davis, 2011:36).

Student monitoring is another critical aspect of effective course management. Technologies such as analytics dashboards provided by many CMS enable educators to track student performance in real time. By using detailed reports on attendance, assignment submissions, and exam results, instructors can identify students who may be struggling academically. This capacity allows educators to intervene early, providing personalized support to enhance student success. Therefore, effective monitoring facilitates timely communication and intervention strategies, which can significantly improve retention rates (Ferguson, 2012:13).

Moreover, student self-monitoring features have become increasingly prevalent in course management tools. Self-assessment quizzes and progress tracking allow students to take ownership of their learning journey. By reflecting on their performance, students can set realistic goals

and foster self-regulation. This empowerment encourages a deeper engagement with course materials and promotes lifelong learning skills(Mandinach & Gummer, 2013:21).

2.3 Interactive Apps and Software

Interactive apps and software are designed to engage students in language learning activities through gamification, quizzes, and interactive exercises. These tools provide a dynamic and interactive learning experience that can motivate students to practice and improve their language skills. Interactive apps and software have transformed the way users engage with technology, offering dynamic experiences that enhance learning, entertainment, and productivity. One of the primary areas where interactive apps have made a substantial impact is in education. Educational software and applications, such as Duolingo and Kahoot!, leverage interactivity to keep learners engaged. These platforms often incorporate gamification elements, such as rewards and challenges, making the learning process more enjoyable and motivating. By enabling learners to actively participate and provide immediate feedback, these apps significantly enhance knowledge retention and facilitate individualized learning paths (Gee, 2008: 67).

In the realm of entertainment, interactive apps have redefined user experiences through gaming and storytelling. Games like Fortnite and interactive narratives like choices in interactive movie apps allow players to influence outcomes and take part in the storyline actively. This level of interactivity creates a more immersive experience, fostering a sense of agency and involvement that traditional media cannot replicate. As technology continues to evolve, the lines between storytelling and gameplay blur, offering richer experiences for users (Jenkins, 2006: 45).

Interactive software has found a place in business environments, aiding collaboration and enhancing productivity. Tools such as Miro and Microsoft Teams provide dynamic platforms for brainstorming, project management, and communication. These applications often incorporate features that allow users to collaborate in real time, share information visually, and track progress seamlessly. By fostering active participation, businesses can improve teamwork, streamline workflows, and enhance overall engagement among employees (Kollock, 2018: 112).

The integration of interactive elements in marketing strategies has gained traction. Brands are employing interactive ads and immersive experiences, such as virtual reality (VR) and augmented reality (AR), to engage potential customers. Campaigns that allow users to interact with products before purchase not only enhance customer engagement but also provide valuable insights into consumer behavior. This shift towards interactivity in marketing helps brands establish a stronger emotional connection with their audience (Lemon & Verhoef, 2016:104).

2.4 Multimedia Resources

Multimedia resources encompass a wide array of content types, including videos, audio recordings, interactive simulations, and digital texts, which serve to enrich the learning experience, particularly in language acquisition. These resources provide authentic, context-rich materials that can significantly bolster language learning by stimulating various sensory modalities. The integration of sound, visuals, and interactivity creates multifaceted experiences that cater to different learning styles, making the process more engaging and effective (Mayer, 2014: 18).

One of the primary benefits of multimedia resources in language learning is the enhancement of listening and speaking skills. For instance, videos featuring native speakers help learners grasp pronunciation, intonation, and speech rhythms, all crucial components of effective communication. Listening to various speakers from different regions allows students to acclimate to diverse accents, further enhancing their listening comprehension. Moreover, interactive audio features enable learners to practice speaking skills by mimicking and responding to prompts, reinforcing their verbal abilities in a practical context (Richards, 2008:23).

In addition to improving linguistic skills, multimedia resources provide invaluable cultural insights that enrich learners' understanding of the language. For example, videos and documentaries about cultural practices, holidays, and traditions can immerse students in real-life contexts, thus fostering a deeper appreciation for the language they are studying. This cultural exposure helps bridge the gap between theoretical knowledge and practical usage, allowing students to contextualize their learning and understand how language operates within different cultural frameworks (Kramsch, 1993:77).

Interactive simulations and language learning apps incorporate gamification elements that motivate and engage learners. These tools often involve role-playing scenarios or contextual exercises that allow students to apply their language skills in simulated environments, such as ordering food in a restaurant or participating in a conversation at a marketplace. Such activities foster a sense of agency, encouraging learners to experiment with language in a safe setting and to refine their skills without the pressure of real-world consequences (Stockwell, 2013: 99).

The use of multimedia resources promotes collaborative learning. Platforms that allow students to engage with each other through video discussions, podcast creation, or online language exchanges create opportunities for peer interaction. This collaborative aspect not only

enhances language skills through practice but also builds a sense of community among learners, fostering motivation and accountability(Doyle & McMahon, 2016:144).

2.5 Stages of Digital Tool Integration

The integration of digital tools into educational settings is a systematic process that typically unfolds through several distinct stages. Understanding these stages helps educators effectively adapt various technologies to enhance both teaching and learning, ensuring that the tools are utilized in a purposeful manner.

The first stage is awareness. In this initial phase, educators become cognizant of the various digital tools available that can support educational practices. Awareness involves exploring emerging technologies and considering how they may address specific educational challenges. Professional development sessions, workshops, and technology showcases often facilitate this process, allowing educators to gain insights into the potential benefits of integrating technology in their classrooms (Harris & Hofer, 2009:23).

Following awareness, educators enter the experimentation phase. During this stage, teachers start to actively experiment with the digital tools they have learned about. They may test individual applications or pilot minilessons that incorporate technology. This experimentation provides educators with firsthand experience, helping them assess the functionality and relevance of various tools to their teaching needs. Collaboration among colleagues often occurs at this stage, helping teachers share successful strategies and insights (Earle, 2002: 15).

The next stage is integration, where educators begin to embed digital tools into their lesson plans and instructional methodologies. At this point, the

focus shifts from simply trying out tools to seamlessly incorporating them into everyday teaching practices. Educators intentionally align technology use with learning objectives, ensuring that the digital tools enhance pedagogical goals and contribute positively to the educational experience. This stage is pivotal for transforming classroom dynamics, as it reflects a deeper understanding of both content and technology (Rogers, 2003: 56).

After integration, the phase of evaluation takes place. Here, educators assess the effectiveness of digital tool integration on student learning outcomes and engagement levels. This might include qualitative and quantitative assessment methods to measure impact. Reflection becomes crucial in this stage, as educators need to analyze what strategies were effective and what areas might require adjustment. This ongoing evaluation process not only informs future decisions but also encourages a culture of responsive teaching (Kirkpatrick, 1994:78).

Finally, the last stage is sustainability. In this phase, educators focus on maintaining and further refining the integration of digital tools over the long term. This involves continuous professional development, staying updated on technological advancements, and fostering a commitment to improving educational practices. Institutions play a vital role in providing ongoing support, resources, and training necessary for educators to adapt and thrive in a technology-rich teaching environment (Mishra & Koehler, 2006: 29).

Conclusion

In conclusion, digital tools have revolutionized English language teaching by providing educators with innovative ways to engage students and enhance learning outcomes. By understanding the advantages of digital tools, implementing effective strategies, and evaluating their efficacy, educators can create dynamic and interactive language learning experiences that benefit students of all levels. Embracing digital tools in

language education is essential for preparing students for success in an increasingly digital world.digital tools have revolutionized English language teaching by providing educators with innovative ways to engage students and enhance learning outcomes. By understanding the advantages of digital tools, implementing effective strategies, and evaluating their efficacy, educators can create dynamic and interactive language learning experiences that benefit students of all levels. Embracing digital tools in language education is essential for preparing students for success in an increasingly digital world.

References

Baker, C. (2018). Digital Tools for Teaching English. *Journal of Language Teaching and Research*.

Bates, A. W. (2019). Teaching in a Digital Age: Guidelines for designing teaching and learning. Tony Bates Associates Ltd.

Blaschke, L. M. (2012). "Heutagogy and Lifelong Learning: A Review of Heutagogical Practice and Self-Determined Learning." The International Review of Research in Open and Distributed Learning.

- Doyle, C., & McMahon, M. (2016). "Collaborative Language Learning: Practices and Perspectives." Routledge.
- Earle, R. (2002). "The Integration of Technology in Higher Education: A Review of the Literature." Computers in Human Behavior, 15, 15.
- Ferguson, R. (2012). "The State of Learning Analytics in 2012: A Review and Future Challenges." Technology Enhanced Learning.
- Gee, J. P. (2008). "Video Games and Learning: Teaching and Participatory Culture in the Digital Age." Palgrave Macmillan.
- Gido, J., & Clements, J. P. (2018). "Successful Project Management." Cengage Learning.
- Gikandi, J. W., Morrow, D., & Davis, N. E. (2011). "Online formative assessment in higher education: A review of the literature." Computers & Education.
- Godwin-Jones, R. (2018). Emerging Technologies: Language Learning and Digital Tools. *Language Learning & Technology*.
- Godwin-Jones, R. (2018). Language Learning and Technology. CALICO Journal, 35(3), 27-40.
- Gonzalez, A. (2021). "Effective Communication Tools for Modern Teams." Journal of Business Communication.
- Harris, J. & Hofer, M. (2009). "Technological Pedagogical Content Knowledge: A Framework for Teacher Knowledge." Teachers College Record, 111(1), 23.
- Hattie, J., & Timperley, H. (2007). The Power of Feedback. *Review of Educational Research*.
 - Hockly, N. (2013). Digital Literacies. *ELT Journal*.
- Jenkins, H. (2006). "Convergence Culture: Where Old and New Media Collide." New York University Press.
- Katz, S. (2017). "Managing Online Courses: A Practical Guide for Educators." Routledge.
- Kessler, G. (2018). Collaborative Language Learning in Digital Environments. *Language Learning & Technology*.

- Kirkpatrick, A. (2019). "The Digital Content Creation Handbook." Academic Press.
- Kirkpatrick, D. (1994). "Evaluating Training Programs: The Four Levels." Berrett-Koehler, 78.
- Kollock, P. (2018). "The Economy of Online Cooperation: The Role of Interactive Technologies." Journal of Business Research.
- Kramsch, C. (1993). "Context and Culture in Language Teaching." Oxford University Press.
- Lemon, K. N., & Verhoef, P. C. (2016). "Understanding Customer Experience Throughout the Customer Journey." Journal of Marketing.
- Mandinach, E. B., & Gummer, E. S. (2013). "Data-Driven Decision Making in Education." Sage Publications.
- Mayer, R. E. (2014). "The Cambridge Handbook of Multimedia Learning." Cambridge University Press.
- McCarthy, J. (2020). "Gamification in Education: The Benefits of Interactive Learning." International Journal of Educational Technology.
- Mishra, P. & Koehler, M. (2006). "Technological Pedagogical Content Knowledge: A Framework for Teacher Knowledge." Teachers College Record, 108(6), 29.
 - Rheingold, H. (2012). Net Smart: How to Thrive Online. MIT Press.
- Richards, J. C. (2008). "Teaching Listening and Speaking: From Theory to Practice." Cambridge University Press.
 - Rogers, E. (2003). "Diffusion of InEchotions." Free Press, 56.
- Sterne, J. (2010). "Social Media Metrics: How to Measure and Optimize Your Marketing Investment." Wiley.
- Stockwell, G. (2013). "Language Learning with Technology: Ideas for Integrating Technology in the Classroom." Cambridge University Press.
- Warschauer, M., & Healey, D. (1998). Computers and Language Learning: An Overview. *Language Learning & Technology*.
- Watson, W. R., & Watson, S. L. (2020). "Learning Management Systems: An Overview." Journal of Educational Technology Development and Exchange.

Wright, A. (2016). Digital Tools for Teaching English. Oxford University Press.

Zhao, Y. (2005). What Teachers Should Know About Technology: Perspectives and Practices. *Educational Technology Research and Development*.